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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sorry we're

          3  getting off to a late start. I had another Committee

          4  hearing across the street. So a lot of things

          5  scheduled at the same time, and that's just

          6  sometimes how it goes. Why don't I get things going

          7  then.

          8                 Good morning. Good morning, and

          9  welcome. I'm Councilman Jim Gennaro, Chair of the

         10  City Council's Committee on Environmental

         11  Protection. Welcome to today's hearing on the

         12  recommendations for the transfer of City-owned

         13  properties containing wetlands released in September

         14  by the New York City wetlands transfer task force.

         15                 First I'd like to take my hat off. I

         16  guess if I had one on I would take it off, I would

         17  take my hat off to this task force, which was set up

         18  under Local Law 83 of 2005, which I authored and

         19  which went through this Committee before being

         20  passed by the Council and signed by the Mayor.

         21                 Under the leadership of its

         22  co-chairs, Bill Tai of the City's Parks Department

         23  and Rob Pirani of the Regional Plan Association, it

         24  has completed a tremendous amount of work that is

         25  going to make a significant contribution to
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          2  protecting the City's wetlands. We're very happy

          3  about that.

          4                 In fact, due to the task force's

          5  leadership and hard work, the City has already even

          6  before these recommendations were completed, agreed

          7  to preserve forever, Arlington Mars, the largest

          8  unprotected until now, tidal wetland in the City.

          9  That's certainly cause for celebration. And now, on

         10  top of that, this report, which recommends

         11  transferring over 80 City properties with wetlands

         12  to the Parks Department for protection, identifies

         13  111 other properties with wetlands that they

         14  recommend be transferred to Parks after additional

         15  studies or measures were taken.

         16                 It also recommends assigning 77 small

         17  properties to the DEP's so-called Blue Belt Program

         18  and makes excellent policy recommendations,

         19  including calling for a City wetlands preservation,

         20  mitigation and restoration policy. But I won't steel

         21  too much of their thunder, I'll let them describe

         22  the recommendations in a few moments. But I will

         23  highlight one thing: protecting wetlands is of

         24  critical importance to the City because of the

         25  ecological aesthetic and other value. Wetlands help
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          2  to prevent flooding, which as we saw this spring and

          3  summer, seems to be a growing problem, particularly

          4  in Queens. Wetlands reduce storm surges, protect

          5  adjacent water bodies, hold and purify water,

          6  provide habitat for many plants, birds and other

          7  animals, and I certainly could go on and on about

          8  the significance of wetlands.

          9                 In short, wetlands are vital

         10  resources to the City, and I look forward to working

         11  with the task force members with the Administration,

         12  including the newest member of the City's

         13  sustainability office, Mr. Carter Strickland, who is

         14  now overseeing air and water issues of the Office of

         15  Long-Term Planning and Sustainability and who I

         16  understand is here to testify today, for which I am

         17  grateful, and others to see these recommendations

         18  through and to build and implement a wetlands policy

         19  to make sure that New York City's wetlands are

         20  adequately protected and restored to preserve those

         21  functions mentioned above.

         22                 So, without further ado, I call the

         23  two above-noted chairs of the Task Force, Bill Tai

         24  and Rob Pirani, to go over their study, the transfer

         25  recommendations and their policy suggestions, all
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          2  from the Task Force perspective, and then we'll hear

          3  from the Mayor's Office of Operation.

          4                 I'd like to happily note that we're

          5  joined by Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito, a

          6  valued member of this Committee. I'm happy to have

          7  Melissa here. We'll have other Council members, and

          8  we will have other members coming and joining us. As

          9  we've said, there is a couple of hearings going on

         10  all at the same time, and some of our members are

         11  wrapped up in other hearings.

         12                 I'd like to thank in a special way

         13  all of the task force members that serve so well, to

         14  produce this good report. So without further ado, I

         15  will call Rob and Bill.

         16                 Gentlemen, thank you for your service

         17  on the task force and for being here today telling

         18  us about your good efforts. We hear many good things

         19  and look forward to hear the details. So, in

         20  whatever order you wish, please feel free. All I ask

         21  is that you state your name for the record before

         22  you commence with your testimony, so in whatever

         23  order you wish to go.

         24                 MR. TAI: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good

         25  morning, Chairman Gennaro. I am Bill Tai, Director
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          2  of the Natural Resources Group at the Department of

          3  Parks and Recreation. On behalf of Mayor Bloomberg,

          4  First Deputy Mayor Harris and Parks Commissioner

          5  Benepe, I am pleased to provide testimony today.

          6  However, I come to your primarily in my role as

          7  Co-Chair of the Wetlands Transfer Task Force. I

          8  should mention I am also joined by the Task Forces

          9  other Co-chair, who will introduce himself in a

         10  moment for the record, and begin our joint

         11  testimony.

         12                 As you well know and have stated,

         13  under Local Law 83, the wetlands transfer task force

         14  was charged with the task of inventorying City-owned

         15  wetlands and reviewing the feasibility of

         16  transferring those wetlands to the jurisdiction of

         17  the Parks Department for long-term protection. This

         18  was a very challenging task and a very involved

         19  process; however, I can report to you that it was

         20  well worth the effort. The task force's work

         21  resulted in a consensus document that we believe is

         22  a big step for a more sustainable New York City. The

         23  recommendations of the task force are the result of

         24  a great deal of cooperation between many City

         25  agencies, some of which are represented today,
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          2  various Council members, including yourself, of

          3  course, and along with many committed members of the

          4  public at large.

          5                 So, I would like to give my thanks to

          6  all who are involved in the process. I'll let Mr.

          7  Pirani take things from here.

          8                 MR. PIRANI: Well, thanks. And I'd

          9  also like to thank the Chairman and his staff for

         10  their leadership in both creating the task force and

         11  ongoing deliberations.

         12                 My name is Rob Pirani. I'm Director

         13  of Environmental Programs at Regional Plan

         14  Association, and as has been stated, I'm also the

         15  Co-chair of the Wetlands Transfer Task Force.

         16                 I'd also like to recognize and thank

         17  my fellow members on the task force on behalf of

         18  Bill, but especially Bill Tai and the staff of the

         19  Department of Parks and Recreation, Natural

         20  Resources group, who really did the bulk of the work

         21  that's going to be presented here today.

         22                 The other task force members, several

         23  of which are here today, Eugenia Flatow, from the

         24  Coalition for the Bight; Randal Fong, from the New

         25  York City Department of Citywide Administrative
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          2  Services; Dana Gumb, from the New York City

          3  Department of Environmental Protection, E.J.

          4  McAdams, and Peter Mott; Glen Phillips, who is here

          5  today from the New York City Audubon, Doug Rice and

          6  K.D. McGuckin, from the New York City Economic

          7  Development Corporation.

          8                 Of the 100 square miles of coastal

          9  wetlands that once bridged the edges of New York

         10  Harbor, only 14 remain, and while we certainly can't

         11  bring all those wetlands back, you know, it's

         12  critical, as the Chairman pointed out, that we

         13  ensure that the wetlands that do remain are

         14  protected and provide the values that have been

         15  mentioned previously, preventing flooding, reducing

         16  storm surges, improving downstream water quality,

         17  nurturing fish and wildlife in providing places to

         18  recreate inexperienced nature.

         19                 The Task Force was established in

         20  late 2005 by the Council and Mayor Bloomberg to

         21  evaluate the technical, legal, economic and

         22  environmental feasibility of transferring City-owned

         23  properties to the Department of Parks and

         24  Recreation.

         25                 We found that there are more than
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          2  3,750 acres of City-owned wetland properties in the

          3  portfolios of other City agencies, a fact that

          4  leaves them, while they may be protecting in some

          5  measure, does leave them largely inaccessible to the

          6  public or to natural resource managers and

          7  vulnerable to fragmentation and development.

          8                 Through Local Law 83, the Task Force

          9  was charged with reviewing these latter wetland

         10  properties for transfer.

         11                 Starting in February 2006, the seven

         12  assigned members of the task force met starting

         13  biweekly and then monthly to set out a methodology,

         14  apply screening criteria and make recommendations

         15  regarding the transfer of those properties.

         16                 Let me take a moment and just note

         17  that our work was made much easier by the fact that

         18  the City had already, the City agencies had already

         19  undertaken quite a number of transfers to the Parks

         20  Department. More than 1,500 properties had been

         21  transferred in the last ten plus years, including

         22  Blue Heron Park in Staten Island, Powell's Cove in

         23  Queens, Paerdegat Basin in Brooklyn, Sherman Creek

         24  in Manhattan, and Soundview Lagoons in the Bronx.

         25  And in fact that we applaud and, again, benefitted
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          2  from the sort of administrative processes that folks

          3  in the Parks Department, DCAS and the other agencies

          4  had already established.

          5                 We also benefitted by involving the

          6  public in both communities and stakeholders and in

          7  and out of government in the process.

          8                 The Task Force sent out notifications

          9  of our work to every community board in the City, to

         10  the Borough Presidents. We published notices in the

         11  City Records and we help public listening sessions

         12  in the two most affected areas of the City, around

         13  Jamaica Bay and on Staten Island.

         14                 We also held additional meetings with

         15  City agencies that had wetlands under their

         16  jurisdiction, with nine governmental organizations,

         17  State and federal agencies, and with the Jamaica Bay

         18  Watershed Protection Plan Advisory Council.

         19                 Through this work, we identified more

         20  than 2,000 City-owned properties known to contain

         21  tidal or freshwater wetlands. We did this using the

         22  Integrative Property Information System, or IPIS,

         23  that's managed by Department of Citywide

         24  Administrative Services.

         25                 This database lists generally
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          2  available City-owned property and we thought it got

          3  us right to the task at hand of identifying those

          4  properties that really didn't have, that were most

          5  suitable for transfer.

          6                 We supplemented that list through our

          7  public process and through looking at other maps of

          8  City-owned properties. At the end of the day, we

          9  screened out the properties that were already owned

         10  by the Department of Parks, or under their

         11  jurisdiction, and at the end of the day a total of

         12  1,020 properties were reviewed.

         13                 Following the direction of the

         14  legislation, the Task Force developed objective

         15  evaluation criteria that guided its decisions

         16  regarding the feasibility of transferring wetland

         17  properties.

         18                 Environmental criteria included

         19  assessment to the size, location and quality of the

         20  wetland. Technical criteria focused on the

         21  management of the site, and in particular the

         22  feasibility of whether DPR would be able to manage

         23  the property. Economic criteria considered the

         24  termination of existing uses and existing public

         25  commitments for the properties, and legal criteria
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          2  covered issues associated with title or

          3  encumbrances, deed restrictions, easements, the

          4  like.

          5                 We also considered stewardship

          6  options available to the City. It was very clear

          7  that in addition to management by the Department of

          8  Parks and Recreation, the City has a number of other

          9  options available to it when it comes to improving

         10  stewardship of its City-owned wetlands.

         11                 I'd like to call particular attention

         12  to the work of the Department of Environmental

         13  Protection through its Staten Island Blue Belt

         14  Program, which manages a number of City-owned

         15  wetlands. There are other options, including

         16  management by a non-governmental organization that

         17  the City has availed itself to.

         18                 And, so, accordingly, in making its

         19  recommendations for specific wetland properties, the

         20  Task Force also considered, as appropriate,

         21  suggested, several management mechanisms as viable

         22  alternatives to transfer to the Department of Parks

         23  and Recreation.

         24                 So, I'm now going to sort of go back

         25  and tag bill, who is going to take it up from here,
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          2  in terms of describing the results of our analysis.

          3                 MR. TAI: Thanks, Rob.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'd just like to

          5  point out that we're joined by Council Member

          6  Domenic Recchia from Brooklyn. Thank you, Domenic,

          7  for being here.

          8                 MR. TAI: Again, a total of 1,020

          9  properties were reviewed by the Task Force.  Of

         10  these properties known to contain wetlands and

         11  remaining under the jurisdiction of City agencies,

         12  other than Parks, there were 339 assigned to one of

         13  the 17 high priority geographic assessment areas,

         14  which included all of the areas, again, that the

         15  Environmental Protection Committee had made the Task

         16  Force Aware of earlier.

         17                 Properties were placed in these

         18  assessment areas through a set of criteria that Rob

         19  just described, and they included, I might want to

         20  highlight, too, that they included again such things

         21  as size and contiguousness to both adjacency and

         22  proximity to existing parks.

         23                 The remaining 681 properties known to

         24  contain wetlands are divided into 18 additional

         25  assessment areas. These properties were generally
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          2  smaller, more isolated, and they were given a more

          3  general review. Because of a large number of smaller

          4  properties, there was a general lack of

          5  documentation on their condition, and the Task Force

          6  did have a limited duration in the resources, so the

          7  details on these properties that worked their way

          8  into the recommendations were somewhat limited.

          9                 However, a recommendation regarding

         10  transfer was given for every single property each

         11  block and lot.

         12                 The property list also included 412

         13  properties already in or recommended for transfer to

         14  the Staten Island Blue Belt Program, which was

         15  mentioned before, a DEP program where wetlands are

         16  owned and managed through their natural stormwater

         17  benefits.

         18                 Transfer to Parks was not recommended

         19  for these properties, since wetlands protection

         20  and/or enhancement will be ensured by DEP instead.

         21                 Acreage considered for transfer to

         22  Parks or other agencies for protection and for

         23  special review, which I will define here in a

         24  moment, a little more than 700 acres as you pointed

         25  out, Mr. Chair.

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Of these, over 250 acres were

          3  specifically recommended for transfer to Parks, and

          4  while the Task Force recommended that this acreage

          5  be transferred to Parks, it was very cognizant of

          6  two important factors. First, that there was extra

          7  timing involved in follow-up actions to implement

          8  some of these property transfers, and secondly, that

          9  the uncertainty of accomplishing Local Law 83's

         10  protection goals in some instances, depended upon

         11  follow-up funding support.

         12                 Now to special review. Special review

         13  was recommended if a site had technical, legal or

         14  other outstanding issues. As mentioned,

         15  contiguousness, or conversely, the lack of proximity

         16  to other City-owned parklands was one of such a

         17  practical type of consideration.

         18                 The special review properties were

         19  distributed over four of the five boroughs, with 36

         20  sites in the Bronx, 35 sites in Queens, 24 in

         21  Manhattan and 16 in Brooklyn.

         22                 Of the 82 properties recommended for

         23  transfer to Parks, Queens has the most with 68

         24  properties, followed by Staten Island with 13

         25  properties, the Bronx with one property, and
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          2  Brooklyn and Manhattan with no properties

          3  recommended for transfer to Parks.

          4                 And then, finally, 76 properties were

          5  recommended for transfer to DEP. As mentioned

          6  earlier, all are in Staten Island and are related to

          7  the Blue Belt Program. All are small properties,

          8  again totalling only 12 acres for the entire total.

          9                 DEP required 62 of those lots for

         10  transfer to establish the new South Beach Blue Belt.

         11                 The remaining 14 lots are remaining

         12  near or adjacent to existing Blue Belt sites, and

         13  while small in size, will definitely aid in the

         14  expansion of those sites.

         15                 Then to summarize the recommendations

         16  of the task force; number one, the cove property at

         17  Arlington Marsh on Staten Island was recommended for

         18  transfer in its entirety to Parks. Portions of the

         19  two remaining City-owned properties that make up the

         20  Arlington complex on the North Shore were

         21  recommended for transfer to Parks also.

         22                 The addition or expansion of park

         23  land, with wetlands at Edgemere, Flushing Airport,

         24  Broad Channel and Thurston Basin in Queens, and

         25  Fresh Kills and Sawmill Creek on Staten Island were
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          2  recommended. These wetlands present some of the best

          3  opportunities for enhancement and restoration that

          4  parks can pursue.

          5                 While the task force recommended that

          6  the 111 special review properties eventually be

          7  transferred to Parks, the timing of those transfers

          8  will differ in individual cases and depend upon the

          9  resolution of some of the other legal and technical

         10  issues that we brought up.

         11                 Parks strongly supported the work of

         12  the task force and is eager to preserve and protect

         13  as much wetland in New York City as it can. However,

         14  because it does not currently have the resources to

         15  ensure adequate ongoing maintenance, parks was

         16  unable to accept all of the additional lands at this

         17  point and would be strained by additional properties

         18  transferred to them under Local Law 83, particularly

         19  small and isolated properties.

         20                 The allocation of funding that would

         21  make it possible for Parks to assume such

         22  responsibility was not in the purview of the task

         23  force.

         24                 So, again, it was prudent, we felt,

         25  to acknowledge a limitation on additional wetlands
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          2  properties that Parks could accept at present, while

          3  also noting that the agency had a very strong

          4  support for the initiative.

          5                 In closing, I'd again like to thank

          6  you, Mr. Chairman, the Committee, as well as Mayor

          7  Bloomberg, Commissioner Benepe, for this opportunity

          8  to serve on the task force, and as Rob said, to work

          9  with really a group of dedicated and extremely

         10  capable appointees.

         11                 I'd be happy to join Rob and answer

         12  any questions from the Committee.

         13                 MR. PIRANI: In closing, let me add

         14  one other set of recommendations to the

         15  site-specific recommendations that Bill just

         16  outlined.

         17                 You know, in undertaking our work,

         18  the Task Force understood that the number of

         19  City-owned wetlands suitable for transfer to Parks

         20  is just part of the total number of wetlands in this

         21  City, and, in fact, there is a large agenda out

         22  there in terms of protecting remaining wetlands that

         23  may not be suitable, as Bill mentioned, for transfer

         24  to Parks, because they may be small or isolated, or

         25  because they're privately owned or because they have
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          2  important economic activity adjacent to them and

          3  make it unsuitable for Parks ownership but important

          4  for wetlands protection.

          5                 The task force, therefore,

          6  recommended that this focus on large tidal wetlands

          7  and reliance on State and Federal wetland

          8  regulations, leaves several important issues

          9  unaddressed.

         10                 First of all, the protection of

         11  certain types of public and private wetlands,

         12  especially small fresh water wetlands, comprehensive

         13  policy guidance and funding for managing smaller

         14  City-owned wetlands and their upland buffers,

         15  wetlands and mapped City streets were underwater

         16  properties. Coordination with appropriate federal,

         17  State and City governmental entities, including

         18  regional or off-site mitigation strategies, and the

         19  assessment in the function of large and small

         20  wetlands in absorbing stormwater runoff and

         21  providing opportunities for erosion prevention. And

         22  finally, understanding the impacts of climate change

         23  and sea level rise on the coastal wetlands and

         24  upland buffers.

         25                 Accordingly, the task force felt the
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          2  protection and survival of the New York City's

          3  remaining wetlands, whether publicly or privately

          4  owned, really call for the development of a

          5  comprehensive wetlands policy.

          6                 I would note that the City Council,

          7  through the leadership of this Committee, and the

          8  Mayor have both recently called for a creation of

          9  such a policy. In February 2007, as you well know,

         10  the Committee drafted Intro. 506, which suggested

         11  creation of a comprehensive wetland protection for

         12  New York City, and the Mayor's recent PlaNYC 2030

         13  report released last April also called for such a

         14  study to identify where existing regulations are not

         15  protecting New York City's remaining wetlands.

         16                 As a first in the development of a

         17  comprehensive policy, we're very encouraged that the

         18  Mayor had his representatives here today through the

         19  sustainability office, and I look forward to their

         20  testimony on how the Administration is going to

         21  proceed in identifying that, you know, the steps

         22  towards creating such a policy.

         23                 Finally, in closing, I'd like to

         24  thank again, thank of the Committee, its staff, the

         25  other members, its chair, for their leadership on
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          2  this issue. I personally found the task force

          3  process to be a very engaging one and satisfying in

          4  the ability to work with, side-by-side with

          5  advocates and with the other City agencies and the

          6  Council staff, and I think it's perhaps a method and

          7  a process that might be employed profitably in other

          8  City, towards development of other City policies in

          9  the environmental protection arena.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, both,

         12  Mr. Pirani, Mr. Tai, for your great work.

         13                 On your last point, Rob, with regard

         14  to the Task Force approach, is something that we've

         15  done in the Jamaica Bay process, as you know, that

         16  worked well, and we think it's important to bring

         17  different minds to the table and it worked well for

         18  Jamaica Bay, it's working well for wetlands, and so

         19  we like that paradigm, we'd like to keep that going.

         20                 And thank you for your statement at

         21  the end of your testimony where we recognize, where

         22  you recognize the need for a comprehensive wetland

         23  policy for the City, that is, as you said, the

         24  thrust of Intro. 506. We've got the sustainability

         25  people interested, it's important that we do that,
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          2  the work of protecting wetlands does not, and with

          3  this report, but certainly, this report is a very

          4  good start.

          5                 I'd like to point out that we're

          6  joined by Council Member Eugene. Thank you for being

          7  here. Council Member Koppell, who was here, he just

          8  stepped out of the room for a moment. He will be

          9  back, and this is a question for either of you. Do

         10  you think that the task force should be extended or

         11  a new one empaneled to advise the Administration on

         12  implementing recommendations from your report,

         13  including creating a City wetlands policy?

         14                 MR. PIRANI: Sure. You know, as you

         15  know, the Task Force is sort of existing for the

         16  next several months, and I think in terms of the

         17  recommendations of this report, we certainly,

         18  speaking on behalf of myself and I think the rest of

         19  the task force members, we'd be eager to work with

         20  the City, with the Council and next steps in

         21  implementing our findings and perhaps in storing the

         22  process of developing this comprehensive policy

         23  could also take place in those auspices.

         24                 You know, in terms of the future, I

         25  think I guess I'm more interested in the end result
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          2  and not necessarily the means. I think it's

          3  important that in the development of the policy,

          4  that the City has to take an approach of including

          5  community groups, including the advocates, and

          6  including other stakeholders in the development of

          7  the process. I mean, wetlands are, the future of

          8  wetlands really depend on the cooperation of many

          9  different levels of government on public, private

         10  landowners, on the advocates being able to, and NGOs

         11  (phonetic) being able to play their part, and so as

         12  long as that goal is met, you know, whether it

         13  legally needs to be constituted in a task force I'll

         14  leave to other folks to decide.

         15                 MR. TAI: And Mr. Chair, to pick up on

         16  that, speaking on behalf of one of the receiving

         17  agencies, the Parks Department, the primary

         18  receiving agency, it was always our anticipation, as

         19  you said, that this not be the end of the process,

         20  but we fully expect as an agency with our resources

         21  as they currently are to begin to assess these

         22  projects, too.

         23                 So, I would say, I see limited

         24  usefulness in the task force extending in its

         25  present form, but as you mentioned, too, I also see
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          2  the next steps on the horizon very eminently, I'm

          3  not going to speak ahead of the Mayor's long-term

          4  planning office to, but there will be next steps,

          5  too, that might be more appropriate, for, again,

          6  this paradigm to be remodeled in regards to having

          7  some public/private collaboration on the review

          8  process.

          9                 But, again, from the agency point of

         10  view, we do see it as a large challenge, but we're

         11  prepared to undertake it, which is to actually take

         12  the recommendations of the task force and to begin

         13  to assess the wetland quality, and we would look to

         14  our sister agency at the DEP to be somewhat like

         15  thinking.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 Now, the report goes to the

         19  Administration and they take a look at, of the 82

         20  primary properties called upon for transfer, it's

         21  82, right? And then the Administration reviews the

         22  report and indicates which of those 82 they're going

         23  to transfer, and for any of the properties that it's

         24  not going to transfer, it indicates why not? That's

         25  what the bill calls for.
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          2                 Is it envisioned, I guess I should

          3  know this, but I don't, is it envisioned that once

          4  the Administration responds to the report, that the

          5  task force will respond to that? Is it envisioned

          6  that the task force would be the entity or one of

          7  the entities that would comment on the

          8  Administration's position on this? Is that

          9  envisioned? I certainly was going to comment on it.

         10  I would like to see all 82 properties transferred,

         11  and if any of them aren't going to be, I would like

         12  to know why.

         13                 And this Committee certainly would be

         14  in a position to question and challenge the

         15  Administration, but is that a role for the Task

         16  Force as well? Is that something which is envisioned

         17  for the Task Force?

         18                 MR. TAI: Mr. Chair, again, as you

         19  say, the local law calls for the Task Force to

         20  submit its recommendations to the Council Speaker

         21  and to the Mayor, my reading of the law describes

         22  the next step as just the Mayor reporting back to

         23  the Speaker by March of next year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. Okay.

         25                 MR. TAI: So, I don't see a review
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          2  process.

          3                 MR. PIRANI: (Not using microphone.)

          4  That's my understanding, too. Although, I guess I

          5  would expect to add that hopefully the transfers

          6  don't have to wait til six months from now to

          7  happen, and then in fact for those transfers, you

          8  know, certainly through the process there's a lot

          9  going on with the agencies and a lot of, you know,

         10  at least on several significant properties some

         11  agreement among everybody that this makes sense at

         12  some level, there is no reason why a transfer of

         13  let's say Arlington Marsh property couldn't move

         14  forward tomorrow, or not tomorrow, Monday.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         16                 MR. PIRANI: But my hope would be that

         17  some action would go forward even sooner than the

         18  official report back from the Mayor's --

         19                 MR. TAI: Mr. Chair, I might add I

         20  will be asking about that transfer on Monday.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, great. I'm

         22  for that.

         23                 Let me ask this. Please explain the

         24  status of the 111 so-called special review sites,

         25  and what you should think happened to them and what
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          2  will happen to them. Just give us a better sense of

          3  those 111 sites and how that category came to be

          4  created and if you could expand upon that, that

          5  would be great.

          6                 MR. TAI: Yes, I might just give you a

          7  very specific example to start with, which is in

          8  looking at the inventory of parcels and having the

          9  resources of the other appointees on the task force,

         10  we were able to telescope down and take a look at

         11  finer points than I guess had been looked at before.

         12  I mean, each individual agency with properties in

         13  their portfolio, we're eminently familiar with the

         14  status but not the entire task force.

         15                 The example I might bring up is a

         16  property that is currently under lease, which is we

         17  identified a number of properties that were

         18  currently in a planning process under lease, in

         19  contract, subject to an RFP, there were various

         20  encumbrances on the properties and that at least put

         21  up a little of a stop sign for us in regards to

         22  liability for terminating a process that was already

         23  in place.

         24                 And, again, given the fact that we

         25  were leafing through so many properties, too, that
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          2  would have constituted a property that was suitable

          3  for special review, meaning a follow-up look at the

          4  property to look at what the feasibility would be to

          5  adjust the current arrangement.

          6                 Another specific case would be issues

          7  that the City has been dealing with for,

          8  historically, or at least for a number of years on

          9  many parcels, which is the issue of trespass and

         10  encroachment.

         11                 Parks Department actually does at the

         12  current time work with our sister agency at DCAS in

         13  looking at parcels as you heard, but these tend to

         14  be complicated by the fact that there might be

         15  existing lease holders or occupants on the parcel

         16  and there might be legal actions, either pending or

         17  anticipated in regards to somebody crossing a

         18  boundary or exceeding the terms of their agreements

         19  with the City.

         20                 So, again, some of these legal and

         21  technical issues were also detailed enough that we

         22  couldn't explore them on the task force, but we

         23  thought the special review categorization would at

         24  least highlight those parcels and say that further

         25  review was necessary.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's the total

          3  acreage of this 111 sites? Because I think total

          4  acreage of 82 is what, 250 something? So, for the

          5  111, I'm being advised that it's 373 acres, and this

          6  -- this would be a situation where maybe someone

          7  has encroached on a piece of City property, put up a

          8  structure, who knows what, and it seems that why

          9  should we not move to protect a certain wetlands,

         10  just because someone has sort of violated it,

         11  so-to-speak. I know that there are -- that's what

         12  you're saying right? There was a certain instance

         13  where there is a wetlands, it's owned by the City,

         14  but it's, you know, wrapped up in some legal issue

         15  and then encroached upon it, built a structure,

         16  built a deck on it, who knows? Is that a fair

         17  characterization of some of the situations that you

         18  find?

         19                 MR. TAI: Yes. There are definitely

         20  some instances like that. The further clarification,

         21  and this applies across the board, too, is that when

         22  we talk about these as wetland properties, we don't

         23  want to give the public or you the impression, too,

         24  that they're totally wetlands. Just one of the

         25  issues that we discovered, too, that on a ten-acre
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          2  parcel, that there might be .5 acres of actual

          3  wetland features on the parcel, that the inventory

          4  was not discriminatory in regards to whether it was

          5  100 percent or five percent. And so some of these

          6  properties may actually have more upland than

          7  wetland on them, too, and that might be the case of

          8  why somebody would develop on the upland portion of

          9  a property and not that they specifically were

         10  breaking a law or going against a regulation to

         11  develop on a wetland. But the complications of

         12  subdividing a parcel, and as you said, dealing with

         13  current legal affairs was a hurdle, was a hurdle for

         14  us.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

         16  the presumption should be that we should try to

         17  protect the wetlands. And I'm wondering what the

         18  fate of this 111 parcels will be? What will be the

         19  entity that will sort of carry out the further

         20  review? There is no kind of paradigm out there for

         21  that ongoing review, other than the City taking it

         22  upon itself to make sure that that happens. How

         23  would we know that that would be conducted? Or is

         24  this the basis for another local law or something?

         25                 I'm just wondering to myself about
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          2  how we take steps to make sure that the 111

          3  properties that have been recommended for further

          4  review actually get that review?

          5                 I mean, let me expand the question.

          6  If you believe that this would be the basis for

          7  another local law to -- I was just wondering. Well,

          8  let me let you go first before I do that.

          9                 MR. PIRANI: Well, you know, I think

         10  you raise a very good point, that obviously, you

         11  know, this report is a snapshot in time, and I think

         12  we were able as a task force to come to some

         13  conclusions about some properties, and certainly the

         14  Parks Department, as the recipient of those

         15  properties, was able to conclude that they were

         16  willing to take charge of them for these 111

         17  properties, or maybe for even other properties that

         18  aren't on the list, there is going to, you know, I'm

         19  sure Bill is going to do as much as his resources

         20  allow to assess whether these properties can come

         21  into the Parks inventory. But as you mentioned, some

         22  of them are tied up with other legal or technical

         23  considerations that prevent them from just saying

         24  yes.

         25                 I think the fact that they're in
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          2  special review means that the Parks Department

          3  didn't say, no, we're not interested.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 MR. PIRANI: So, I think there is some

          6  indication that there is some value there that the

          7  Parks Department might be interested if these other

          8  issues resolve themselves.

          9                 You know, in terms of how to ensure

         10  that ongoing review, you know, certainly I think a

         11  lot of it falls on Parks shoulders to undertake this

         12  task which they have been doing, even prior to the

         13  law.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure, of course.

         15                 MR. PIRANI: And I think part of that

         16  is making sure that they have the adequate resources

         17  that will enable them to do the legal work, you

         18  know, the site investigations that would be required

         19  before they can really sign off on it.

         20                 The second thing is really scrutiny,

         21  by both the Committee as well as the communities and

         22  advocates that are factored in those particular

         23  neighborhoods or on a City-wide basis. You know,

         24  it's the intent of the task force to make the

         25  reports public, the list of these properties is
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          2  available. I think to the extent that some of these

          3  kind of rise to the surface beyond our efforts like

          4  any other sort of land conservation effort in the

          5  City it's going to require dedication of the

          6  community at large to make sure that there is

          7  follow-up.

          8                 You know, I guess I hesitate to say

          9  there needs to be another law right now, but

         10  certainly, you know, I think that's an arrow that

         11  the Council has in its quiver, and, you know, you

         12  shouldn't throw that away. It's a possibility.

         13                 But I'm hopeful that given adequate

         14  resources, the Parks Department will be able to

         15  follow through on these in the near future.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you. I'm grinning not because your answer was

         18  amusing but because Council Member Ignizio indicated

         19  that he has to rush back to the hospital where his

         20  wife is giving birth imminently, and so I hope he

         21  drives safely. He indicated it was sort of happening

         22  as we speak. And, so, that was good for him. That's

         23  a wonderful thing.

         24                 Council Member Vallone stopped in. He

         25  had sort of a more traditional excuse. He indicated
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          2  that he was chairing a hearing across the street,

          3  which he ducked out of just to come over here and

          4  sort of check in. So, I thank him for coming by and

          5  I don't think he's having children today. Or he

          6  didn't mention it. So, this is all life at the City

          7  Council, it's good for Vincent and his wife.

          8                 Thank you for your answer.

          9                 The report refers to about 170

         10  properties with wetlands that are generally small,

         11  isolated or otherwise compromised, but which should

         12  be looked at more closely and"...should remain

         13  remain in the DCAS portfolio subject to a

         14  preservation hold that prevents them from being

         15  auctioned," until the Department of Parks and

         16  Recreation has a chance to evaluate them.

         17                 Now, this would be I guess a

         18  different list than the 111, right? These 170

         19  properties are a different list than the 111; is

         20  that fair to say? Okay. And to your knowledge, does

         21  such a preservation hold currently exist? Is there

         22  such a thing? Or would it just be like --

         23                 MR. TAI: Not by that name, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         25                 MR. TAI: In checking with DCAS during
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          2  the process of the Task Force, too, we did confirm

          3  the effectiveness of the whole process that is in

          4  place.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

          6                 MR. TAI: It is a routine process

          7  right now for agencies to hold, place holds on

          8  properties. It highlights that property as being of

          9  interest to that agency.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 MR. TAI: And there is a check and

         12  balance system too, where DCAS checks with other

         13  agencies, as well as the agency that's put the hold

         14  on the property on a regular basis.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, so in other

         16  words, DCAS, as the City's sort of overall property

         17  manager will be mindful of interest by other City

         18  agencies in a property. Is that really what the

         19  process is?

         20                 MR. TAI: Yes. And then they do check

         21  to see if that interest ebbs or changes, which is to

         22  check back with the agency to make sure that that

         23  hold should still be --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, it would be,

         25  so in order to have such a preservation hold, it
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          2  would be necessary for some agency to indicate their

          3  interest in having such a hold. So, this is what the

          4  Parks Department -- is it recommended that the Parks

          5  Department officially, and I understand you're

          6  speaking in your capacity as a member of the Task

          7  Force, but is it the recommendation that the Parks

          8  Department sort of formally indicate their interest

          9  in these properties to create this preservation

         10  hold; is that something you'd like to see? Is that

         11  something that you're calling upon to happen?

         12                 MR. TAI: Yes and no. I'm sorry for

         13  the yes and no, but I guess what we're hoping to

         14  have happen is to explore the process as it stands

         15  and to ascertain whether or not Parks did need to

         16  express its specific interest for a hold, or whether

         17  or not a wider categorization of a hold could be

         18  constituted.

         19                 For instance, if Parks did not

         20  specifically put a hold on these parcels, whether or

         21  not DCAS at no particular agency is called, could

         22  just put a hold on them themselves.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Is it

         24  possible that any of these 170 properties are

         25  already kind of assigned to another agency or
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          2  something? Or would it just be a DCAS property?

          3                 MR. TAI: I wouldn't be able to tell

          4  you right off the top of my head if some of them

          5  were not on a hold already.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's just that

          7  I'm interested in the fate of these properties.

          8                 MR. TAI: Mr. Chair, I might also

          9  mention again a practical example, which is during

         10  the course of the Transfer Task Force's proceedings,

         11  a parcel was identified to the Task Force as being

         12  in a DCAS auction, and that was actually in process

         13  to be auctioned, and in fact the auction process had

         14  proceeded in some ways. But as soon as the Task

         15  Force was notified about it, we did have a DCAS

         16  participant on the Task Force too, and that parcel

         17  was withdrawn from the auction.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         19                 MR. TAI: And it is our hope, too,

         20  that in signaling these parcels, identifying them,

         21  as well as special review parcels, too, that that

         22  type of identification would go first.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Do we have

         24  an acreage count on this 170 acres? Is there any

         25  acreage count on these 170 properties, small,
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          2  isolated, compromised wetlands?

          3                 MR. TAI: There is, but I'll have to

          4  check.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could

          6  hold that thought, is there -- if one were to look

          7  on the DCAS database now, I guess, would there be

          8  any indication or flag on these properties that they

          9  are sort of of interest or should remain in the DCAS

         10  portfolio? Have they been flagged, or is that an

         11  action that is still kind of pending for them, or

         12  perhaps pending?

         13                 MR. TAI: I don't think either of us

         14  know that question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All right. Well,

         16  we've got folks in the Administration coming up and

         17  we'll be talking about that.

         18                 But Rob, you were about to say

         19  something?

         20                 MR. PIRANI: Just to add to that, you

         21  know, in relating this to sort of the overall

         22  wetlands policy question, and certainly I know

         23  Putnam County in New York State just is one example

         24  as a process by which surplus government property,

         25  before it's auctioned, has to be reviewed by its
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          2  planning commission and other agencies for

          3  environmental values, and certain of the properties,

          4  if they meet, you know, certain thresholds, are then

          5  transferred to the Parks Department or to Land

          6  Trust. Certainly that's something that could be

          7  investigated, and maybe suggested as part of an

          8  overall wetlands policy for the City. The federal

          9  government has a very similar process for surplus

         10  federal government lands by which they have to sort

         11  of assess environmental issues and I believe

         12  preservation issues and affordable housing issues,

         13  they then have to offer it to other federal agencies

         14  and then local government agencies.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see. Yes,

         16  it sounds like something -- that's the kind of

         17  thing, the spirit of which is embodied in 506, which

         18  doesn't explicitly state that now, 506 doesn't. But

         19  it's the type of thing we'd like to see as part of

         20  the overall wetlands policy, perhaps we should

         21  explicitly state that through an amendment to 506,

         22  that would be more specific that that kind of review

         23  take place before anything that's auctioned, which

         24  would sort of get to -- another way of protecting

         25  these, I guess these 111 properties and these 170
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          2  properties, as well.

          3                 Okay, you guys have been great. We

          4  appreciate all of your terrific work and you were

          5  able to do some very, very good things.

          6                 Okay, how would you advise the City

          7  on prioritizing the transfer of wetlands called for

          8  in your recommendation? I guess that would be the 82

          9  properties?

         10                 Did you assign priority levels to the

         11  properties, to those 82?

         12                 MR. TAI: To be brief, no, we did not

         13  assign priorities. And the thought again that this

         14  report was an introductory action in a way, and that

         15  there should be more dialogue about how to proceed,

         16  what steps.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's fair

         18  enough. They're all important. That's the answer,

         19  they're all important. But that's great. Thanks

         20  again for being here, and all of you do great work

         21  and we're very, very grateful to you. We appreciate

         22  your testimony.

         23                 MR. TAI: Thank you.

         24                 MR. PIRANI: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, you bet.
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          2                 Okay, we'd like to call Ariella Maron

          3  and Carter Strickland. Although we don't have a

          4  sheet for Carter, but we'll call him anyway.

          5                 Mr. Strickland, I think they're going

          6  to make you do a sheet. How do you like that? We've

          7  got to have everything.

          8                 Okay, I believe I have a copy of your

          9  statement. So, Ms. Maron, Mr. Strickland, welcome.

         10  It's a pleasure to have you here today. Yes, please

         11  state your names for the record and commence with

         12  your good testimony.

         13                 MS. MARON: Thank you. My name is

         14  Ariella Maron. I'm Deputy Director of the Mayor's

         15  Office of Long-Term Planning and Sustainability. I

         16  want to say good morning to Chairman Gennaro and

         17  Council Member Eugene. On behalf of Mayor Michael

         18  Bloomberg, I'll address the City's plan to consider

         19  the recommendations of the Wetlands Transfer Task

         20  Force.

         21                 I am joined today by my colleague

         22  Carter Strickland, who is Senior Policy Advisor for

         23  Air and Water, and he will be joining me in the

         24  question and answer session.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.
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          2                 MS. MARON: I will also address the

          3  wetlands policy commitments of PlaNYC, which is

          4  Mayor Bloomberg's long-term planning and

          5  sustainability plan and will be available to answer

          6  questions at that point.

          7                 The Mayor's Office thanks the members

          8  of the Wetlands Transfer Task Force for their

          9  significant contribution to this timely study. As

         10  was stated earlier, the City has lost 86 percent of

         11  its wetlands in the last century. Some of this loss

         12  was due to environmental change, such as rising sea

         13  level, but the majority of the loss was due to fill

         14  for development. And despite these changes, the City

         15  still owns numerous parcels that contain wetlands.

         16  These wetlands represent a spectrum of ecological

         17  value, and they're important to the City because

         18  they play such an important role in maintaining and

         19  even improving our water quality by reducing the

         20  quantity of stormwater runoff.

         21                 And as the City knows from the

         22  Department of Environmental Protection's Blue Belt

         23  Initiative, this allows -- this is the program where

         24  the City uses wetlands as an extremely valuable and

         25  cost-effective substitute for conventional storm
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          2  sewers.

          3                 Wetlands can also filter and absorb

          4  nutrients, silt and other pollutants from stormwater

          5  runoff, provide flood protection, erosion buffers,

          6  carbon sequestration, important wildlife habitat

          7  and, of course, public enjoyment opportunities.

          8                 The Task Force has made an initial

          9  judgment about the value and appropriate use of the

         10  many larger City-owned wetlands. The report

         11  indicates those parcels that the task force believes

         12  are appropriate for protection as wetlands in the

         13  park system, appropriate as stormwater filters in

         14  the Bluebelt program, and those that should be used

         15  for other purposes.

         16                 As a first step, the City will now

         17  begin the process of studying each of the parcels,

         18  verifying the extent and value of the wetlands,

         19  identifying legal, ecological management and/or

         20  funding issues, and then making a final judgment

         21  about the usefulness of each parcel.

         22                 That work will be done by the

         23  receiving agency, in coordination with our office,

         24  the Mayor's Office of Operations, specifically

         25  long-term planning and sustainability, and in
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          2  consultation with the Department of City

          3  Administrative Services.

          4                 One exception to this process is the

          5  transfer to the Parks Department. Over 70 acres of

          6  salt marshes in Arlington Marsh complex on Staten

          7  Island, including the entirety of Arlington Marsh

          8  Cove, portions of Arlington Marsh Bridge Creek, and

          9  related small properties.

         10                 This City worked closely with Council

         11  Members Gennaro and McMahon in determining that this

         12  transfer should occur due to the wetlands unique and

         13  significant ecological value.

         14                 So, thank you for working with us on

         15  that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         17                 MS. MARON: As a second simultaneous

         18  step, PlaNYC committed to assessing whether existing

         19  federal and State laws fall short of protecting New

         20  York City's remaining wetlands. This is both private

         21  and public.

         22                 This initiative, too, was developed

         23  in collaboration with Chair Gennaro. PlaNYC

         24  committed to beginning this gap analysis immediately

         25  after the Wetlands Task Force completed its work.
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          2  Therefore, we will meet that commitment now that the

          3  Wetlands Transfer Task Force has completed its

          4  initial study and has reported this to the

          5  Committee. In fact, we are kicking off a planning

          6  meeting with interested City agencies the next

          7  available business day after day, which is Monday,

          8  October 22nd.

          9                 As a third step, PlaNYC will build on

         10  the work of the Wetlands Transfer Task Force and the

         11  gap analysis to set the first steps for a review of

         12  the need of wetlands policy, exactly how it's listed

         13  out in PlaNYC.

         14                 The wetlands assessment is but one

         15  element of PlaNYC's efforts to improve water

         16  quality, preserve natural areas, and protect the

         17  City from projected impacts of climate change. A

         18  related water quality element of the plan includes

         19  expansion of green, permeable spaces across the City

         20  to reduce stormwater runoff. Examples of this

         21  include the One Million Tree Initiative, which was

         22  launched last week, October 9th, and this Saturday

         23  It's My Park Event where there is an expected

         24  planting of 10,000 trees.

         25                 Also, as part of PlaNYC in relation
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          2  to water quality, we include expansion of the

          3  Bluebelt program, and expansion tracking analysis of

          4  new stormwater Best Management Practices on a broad

          5  scale through the formation of an Interagency BMP

          6  Task Force, piloting promising BMPs, requiring the

          7  greening of parking lots and providing incentives

          8  for the installation of green roofs. Together, these

          9  elements will improve the quality of New York City's

         10  waters.

         11                 Other wetlands-related elements of

         12  PlaNYC include the preservation and expansion of

         13  open space, including eight large regional parks,

         14  and a citywide strategic planning process to protect

         15  the City for the impacts of climate change.

         16                 So, I want to thank you for the

         17  opportunity to share the Administration's planned

         18  next steps to protect New York City's wetlands. And

         19  Carter and I would be happy to answer any questions

         20  you may have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you for being here today. Thank you for your

         23  testimony. Thank you for your interest in wetlands,

         24  and Mr. Strickland, congratulations on your

         25  appointment. We look forward to working with you.
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          2                 I guess just some boilerplate stuff

          3  here on the details of how the next steps will

          4  happen, and what specific process will you follow in

          5  evaluating, and if you decide to do so, implementing

          6  the Task Force's recommendations and what is your

          7  time frame for doing that?

          8                 MS. MARON: As you can imagine, due

          9  diligence review is an essential element of any

         10  property transfers. The City is now in the process

         11  of studying each of the parcels and verifying the

         12  extent and value of the wetlands, identifying legal,

         13  ecological, management and/or funding issues, and

         14  then making a final judgment about the usefulness of

         15  each parcel.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, but some of

         17  this work has been done. Can't you just see what was

         18  done by the Task Force, by the advisory committee?

         19                 MS. MARON: There is an additional

         20  site-by-site analysis that is necessary, working

         21  with the receiving agency and our office.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The receiving

         23  agency would be the Parks Department?

         24                 MS. MARON: For most of them it is

         25  Parks Department, for others DEP.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, that's

          3  right, DEP. Yes.

          4                 So, what's the time frame for this? I

          5  guess it's a statutory time frame, right? Is it

          6  March or whatever, things are supposed to be done

          7  by? Staff has indicated that the time for this

          8  review is three months? Is that where we're checking

          9  that? Is that what's supposed to happen?

         10                 MS. MARON: We believe it's March.

         11  We're just double-checking the language.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that? Six

         13  months. Six months is what it says. Okay.

         14                 And regarding, do you anticipate

         15  having any difficulty making the six-month statutory

         16  window provided for the review?

         17                 MS. MARON: It's too early for our

         18  office to know yet.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         20                 And in this process, in this review

         21  process, will there be an opportunity for public

         22  input? Is it envisioned that there will be public

         23  input in that process?

         24                 MS. MARON: I will have to check with

         25  my colleagues on the wetlands task force, as well as
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          2  the receiving agencies. But as a principle, the

          3  Mayor's Office of Operations really appreciates

          4  public input whenever possible.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Will you respond

          6  to all recommendations, including those that address

          7  operations, policy, and things like that? Because,

          8  you know, people -- hang on a second.

          9                 Okay, let me expand upon that. The

         10  Task Force in their report, as you know, not only

         11  talked about the 82 properties, but about these 111

         12  special properties and 168 other properties, and the

         13  need for a overall City wetlands policy in dealing

         14  with parcels that are under water. So, the question

         15  is, will your office respond to all of those

         16  recommendations that are made in the Task Force

         17  report? Including some of those that they were

         18  essentially not requesting be made, but thankfully

         19  did make.

         20                 MS. MARON: We will respond to all

         21  their recommendations on whether we're going forward

         22  with them or not.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I point out in

         24  my last set of questions about the fate of the 111

         25  properties for special review, the 168 small,
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          2  isolated, compromised properties that should be

          3  looked at more closely and remain in the DCAS

          4  portfolio, and I'm just wondering to myself what we

          5  should do about creating some formal process for

          6  making sure that the 111 properties that are called

          7  upon to get special review get the special review,

          8  and the 168 properties to be looked at more closely

          9  and remain in the DCAS portfolio, subject to a

         10  preservation hold, you know, how do we get that to

         11  happen? I guess one way would be to, Dan, build this

         12  into 506. We could do that. You know, 506 being our

         13  Wetlands Bill. Our Wetlands Policy Bill. Do you have

         14  any thoughts on what should happen regarding the 111

         15  properties and the 168 properties?

         16                 MS. MARON: I can speak generally that

         17  as PlaNYC states in its wetlands initiative, our

         18  next step is to look at what current protections are

         19  available for all wetlands, whether private or

         20  public. So, in looking at what protections our

         21  wetlands have, that will allow us to find the

         22  appropriate ways to make sure that all appropriate

         23  wetlands are protected, whether public --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's a little

         25  too general. I was thinking that, because we've
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          2  already got these 111 properties and 168 properties

          3  identified, and we've started to work on them,

          4  there's been a recommendation made and I think we

          5  have to do something pretty specific for them to

          6  make sure that the special review happens for those

          7  111 properties, and these other 168 properties, that

          8  something very specific happens and do you envision

          9  that in the City's response to the report, of course

         10  you'll respond on the 82 properties, will there be a

         11  formal response on what is going to happen to those

         12  111 properties and 168 properties? I think that

         13  there should be. And so, will you make a commitment

         14  now that there will be in your response that it will

         15  include something specific about these 111

         16  properties and 168 properties?

         17                 MS. MARON: I can speak to the 111

         18  going under special review, but we'll get back to

         19  you on the rest.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Let's talk

         21  a little bit about what I call Intro 506 and what

         22  perhaps your office would call the Administration's

         23  commitment to evaluating wetlands policy in the

         24  City. I think we're talking about similar things. We

         25  call it 506, you call it your effort to look at
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          2  wetlands policy across the City.

          3                 I believe it would be imperative for

          4  any City wetlands policy, whether it's that embodied

          5  in 506, or something that your office would conceive

          6  of, that if it is going to survive the Bloomberg

          7  Administration and my tenure here at the Council and

          8  as Chairman of this Committee, that it be, you know,

          9  crystalized in the form of a local law so that we

         10  will have a local law, you know, like they have in

         11  Putnam County and other places, that says if it's a

         12  private wetlands and it falls in this regulatory gap

         13  between the State and the feds that we have

         14  something to look at that, and if it's public

         15  wetlands, before we auction it off, you know, we do

         16  a review of it and make sure that we're not

         17  auctioning off or selling or developing a critical

         18  piece of natural infrastructure. And we believe, I

         19  believe it's necessary to crystalize that in a local

         20  law. Do you believe that? And are you committed to

         21  seeing that the City wetlands policy is reduced to

         22  writing and put in law?

         23                 MS. MARON: A few things. First of

         24  all, on the PlaNYC Initiative, we did work closely

         25  with you and members of our advisory boards, so I
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          2  would like to think of that as ours as well.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Of course.

          4                 MS. MARON: That's number one.

          5                 Number two, I think it's a little

          6  early for us, as we're going to be beginning

          7  outlining the next process, to know whether Intro.

          8  506 is exactly what we think should go forward.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just jump

         10  in.

         11                 MS. MARON: But it is a possibility we

         12  will consider looking forward. It's a possibility.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: When I say

         14  Intro. 506. I mean, yes, as amended. Sitting here

         15  today I've got more ideas of what should be in 506.

         16  So, when I say 506, what I really mean is a local

         17  law that the Council and the Bloomberg

         18  Administration could negotiate. So, that's what I

         19  mean by that. Go ahead.

         20                 MS. MARON: I understand. I think it's

         21  a possibility. I think it's too early for me to say

         22  today, but I think it's a possibility that will be

         23  considered.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What would be

         25  the reason for not putting it into law? I mean, you
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          2  could say this about a lot of the PlaNYC keypoints,

          3  but what would even one reason be for not

          4  crystalizing this law? Even one reason for not

          5  making the law on this?

          6                 MS. MARON: Well, one reason for me

          7  not to committing it to today, is I don't want to be

          8  put in a corner today. I want to go back, discuss

          9  with my colleagues, look at the opportunities. Like

         10  I said, the Wetlands Transfer Task Force has just

         11  completed studying, and we are just now beginning to

         12  get ourselves familiarized with what our office, not

         13  the City as a whole --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         15                 MS. MARON: -- On what we're going to

         16  do next. So, I think it's too early for us to commit

         17  to anything regarding wetlands policy moving

         18  forward, beyond what we have in PlaNYC.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         20                 Let's turn to a happy topic.

         21  Arlington Marsh and Arlington Marsh Cove, what's the

         22  timetable? First of all, I want to thank the

         23  Administration for their hard work on Arlington

         24  Marsh Cove. I know that this was a parcel that the

         25  Administration had one perspective on it originally,
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          2  and we engaged, we in the Council engaged them on

          3  it. They were certainly receptive to being engaged

          4  on it, you know, did the study, and did exactly what

          5  they said they were going to do, do the analysis and

          6  let the chips fall where they may, and that's

          7  exactly what happened, and it worked out well. So I

          8  thank the Administration for that. But now that

          9  everybody on the planet wants to see it preserved,

         10  what's the timetable for that happening?

         11                 MS. MARON: I think Bill said earlier

         12  that on Monday he was going to talk to some of his

         13  colleagues at Parks and see how to begin the next

         14  steps.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Great.

         16  Great.

         17                 Okay, let me go over something that I

         18  mentioned to the previous panel regarding the 168

         19  properties, these so-called generally isolated or

         20  otherwise compromised, but should be looked at more

         21  closely and should remain in the DCAS portfolio,

         22  subject to preservation hold, and we talked a little

         23  bit about that, that would prevent them from being

         24  auctioned, and so here is the question: The

         25  recommendation of the report calls for putting a
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          2  transfer hold on a large number of properties --

          3  this would be the 168 -- until such time as the

          4  Parks Department has the opportunity to make an

          5  assessment of the wetlands on them. In your view, is

          6  such a hold feasible?

          7                 MS. MARON: Absolutely. It's actually

          8  in the City Charter. City Charter Section 824-B

          9  gives DCAS the authority to assign and reallocate

         10  City properties among agencies, but also has as part

         11  of that process that DCAS does the ability to do a

         12  hold, as I believe Bill had described earlier.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MS. MARON: It's part of the regular

         15  process.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, so you

         17  answered my question, the hold is feasible, it's

         18  written into the Charter. But how would that work? I

         19  mean, would it be the case that the Parks Department

         20  would have to formally request for these 168

         21  properties, that a hold be put on them? How do you

         22  get to be held?

         23                 MS. MARON: We could get you more

         24  specific information from DCAS.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. We would
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          2  like to call for that. I mean, could the Mayor's

          3  Office or your office call for that, or some entity

          4  within the Administration will call for that?

          5                 MS. MARON: We'll get you that

          6  information.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because we just

          8  have to be mindful of, you know, not the 82, but the

          9  111, and the 111, which is a lot of acreage, more

         10  than even like the transfer acreage and the 168

         11  properties, which we don't know how much acreage

         12  that is, but it could be significant.

         13                 Let's see what else I got here. Will

         14  your formal response to the report recommendations

         15  include an assessment of additional resources needed

         16  by the Parks Department to manage wetlands and

         17  complete additional analysis of wetlands asked for

         18  in the recommendations?

         19                 MS. MARON: Absolutely. As you can

         20  imagine, wetlands management is not free. There is

         21  restoration that is needed of degraded wetlands,

         22  there is the management cost, staff resources and

         23  other expertise that might be brought in. So there

         24  is a cost, and therefore, this will be well assessed

         25  what resources it will need and what that is.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I would

          3  like to point out that we're joined by Councilman

          4  Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn, a well-known lover of

          5  wetlands.

          6                 Yes, but I think we're good. I think

          7  you've answered all of the questions that we had for

          8  you, and I appreciate your being here and appreciate

          9  your commitment to wetlands and I'll just stress

         10  once again my belief that in order to really make

         11  PlaNYC as permanent as we all want it to be, as far

         12  reaching as we want it to be, that we should

         13  endeavor to use our remaining time to create the

         14  best policies that we can, reduce them to writing,

         15  put them in law and make the next administration,

         16  the next City Council live by them. So, that will be

         17  my mantra.

         18                 Thanks very much for being here.

         19                 MS. MARON: Thank you.

         20                 MR. STRICKLAND: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we're

         22  going to move forward. To kind of move things along

         23  we're going to create some panels, and I'd like to

         24  call up my good friend Eugenia Flatow. She was on

         25  the Wetlands Committee Task Force, we appreciate her
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          2  service, and Reed Super (phonetic) from Columbia Law

          3  School we would like to call up as well. Is Reed

          4  here? Okay, I guess he's not here.

          5                 Genie, thanks so much for being here

          6  and all of your great work. You're wonderful. Thanks

          7  for your service to the City, your service to the

          8  environment and for being my friend.

          9                 MS. FLATOW: I just wanted to point

         10  out --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've just got

         12  to state your name for the record, first.

         13                 MS. FLATOW: Oh, okay. My name is

         14  Eugenia Flatow and I'm Chair of the New York City

         15  Soil and Water Conservation District and Coalition

         16  for the Bight.

         17                 There are other things that would not

         18  have been considered directly by this Committee that

         19  wetlands are important for. And for instance, the

         20  whole question of reducing the CSO discharge could

         21  very well use some very special handling of what I

         22  call the leftover wetlands that we did not speak to.

         23  I spoke to the gentleman from the Mayor's Office

         24  today and said I was trying to reach him to talk

         25  about these things which we should certainly make
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          2  clear that if we had had the resources or the time

          3  we would have checked them. You know that Paul

          4  Mankowicz is doing a great deal of this, but we also

          5  have the Jamaica Bay set up and so it's a great deal

          6  to do in a short period of time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          8                 MS. FLATOW: And I think it's very,

          9  very important that PlaNY, which the Mayor has

         10  shared with us, is going to come into difficulty as

         11  to what we do with how much waterfront we have,

         12  because in many cases some of these wetlands are

         13  near the water or go into the water, and I think it

         14  is very, very important that we seek to have a

         15  statement that says in our definition or in where we

         16  want to go with this, to look at the whole question

         17  of the Bronx putting a great deal of fresh water

         18  back into the sewer, which increases the CSO

         19  discharge, and that there are many ways in which

         20  wetlands can be very useful in helping us to keep

         21  those stormwaters on the land and not allow them to

         22  get into the sewers, and to put the double sewers

         23  by-product and stormwater together in the discharge.

         24                 So, I'm glad today that you really

         25  worked at that, and I think it's very important we
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          2  follow up as to what we know about them. They may be

          3  too small. They may not be effective. There may be

          4  other reasons, but they should be analyzed by

          5  someone who understands how to use them, so that

          6  this completes its review of keeping these wetlands

          7  safe.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

          9  we wanted to, I tried to focus my attention not only

         10  on the 82 transfer parcels but on the 111 special

         11  review, the 168 isolated wetlands, they're all

         12  precious and we should endeavor to make sure that

         13  they get the review and consideration that was

         14  called upon in the Task Force report. So, I'm

         15  committed to that, and I'm glad to have your support

         16  in that.

         17                 MS. FLATOW: Thank you very much. I

         18  will send this to you in writing if you want it for

         19  the record.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. That would

         21  be great.

         22                 MS. FLATOW: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Genie,

         24  thanks a lot.

         25                 And we'll have a panel. Glenn
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          2  Phillips of New York City Audubon. Alan Weyman,

          3  Wyman, I don't know if I'm saying that right, from

          4  the Bronx representing himself. Cheryl Huber of New

          5  Yorkers for Parks, if Cheryl is here.

          6                 Okay, great. I guess we'll start from

          7  I guess my left or your right. Glenn, right?

          8                 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, good morning.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: New York City

         10  Audubon. Okay, just state your name for the record.

         11                 MR. PHILLIPS: My name is Glenn

         12  Phillips, I'm Executive Director of New York City

         13  Audubon. Founded nearly 30 years ago, New York City

         14  Audubon is the grassroots conservation organization

         15  dedicated to protecting wild birds in their habitat

         16  within the City, improving the quality of life for

         17  all New Yorkers.

         18                 I had the privilege of visiting

         19  Arlington Cove Marsh earlier this week, and I would

         20  like to thank the City Council, Chair and Mayor

         21  Bloomberg for creating the Wetland Transfer Task

         22  Force which has led to the protection of this unique

         23  salt marsh.

         24                 While we were three we watched a

         25  kingfisher dive for fish and a Lesser Yellowlegs
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          2  chase after fish in the shallows.  I felt proud to

          3  know that my daughter and perhaps her own children

          4  someday will be able to visit this amazing natural

          5  place.

          6                 Most people, if they think of

          7  wetlands at all, think of them as mosquito-infested

          8  wastelands, few recognize the vital ecosystems

          9  services our wetlands provide in purifying our

         10  water, protecting our shore lines from storm damage,

         11  controlling floods and providing nurseries for

         12  important fisheries. In the last 200 years, nearly

         13  90 percent of our wetlands have been destroyed, and

         14  what remains is threatened with degradation and

         15  development. Despite State and federal laws to

         16  protect wetlands, these wetlands remnants continue

         17  to decline and within our children's lifetime,

         18  perhaps even our own, our wetlands may be squeezed

         19  out between existing development and rising oceans

         20  as a result of global warming.

         21                 New York City's unique urban

         22  environment demands thoughtful and tailored

         23  solutions, developing a comprehensive wetland

         24  protection policy, ensuring that it is consistently

         25  enforced in the City is essential to preserving our
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          2  wetlands and the vital ecosystem functions they

          3  provide.

          4                 New York City may not have majestic

          5  mountains or verdant rainforests, but our wetlands,

          6  among the most biologically productive of all

          7  ecosystems, are starting points for voyages of

          8  discovery as startling as any provided in the

          9  farthest reaches of the Amazon. The precious

         10  fragments that remain afford a connection to the raw

         11  power of nature of the struggle for existence and

         12  the beauty of the wild things who share our planet.

         13                 On behalf of New York City Audubon's

         14  nearly 10,000 members, I strongly urge the City

         15  Council and the Mayor to implement the

         16  recommendations of the Wetland Transfer Task Force,

         17  and to create a comprehensive wetland protection

         18  policy as called for in Intro. 506.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you, Glenn. I'll have comments or questions for the

         21  whole panel once people finish their statement.

         22                 Mr. Wyman or Weyman? I want to make

         23  sure.

         24                 MR. WEYMAN: I don't know if this is

         25  appropriate, but I'm here to make a quick statement
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          2  about the Mister Softee law that you passed a couple

          3  of months ago?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, that

          5  actually would not be. That would be --

          6                 MR. WEYMAN: It's not being enforced

          7  in the Bronx.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That would be

          9  related --

         10                 MR. WEYMAN: Just one more sentence.

         11  We need the law modified where the music is cut off

         12  automatically when the truck stops. We can't depend

         13  on drivers cutting it off.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, your point

         15  is well taken. Happy to talk to you after the

         16  hearing, but the Noise Law is not the subject of

         17  this hearing, so there's limited colloquy that I can

         18  allow on a topic that's not for the hearing. But

         19  happy to talk to you about it after the hearing.

         20                 And Ms. Huber.

         21                 MS. HUBER: Good morning. Thank you

         22  for the opportunity to testify today. My name is

         23  Cheryl Huber and I'm Director of Research at New

         24  Yorkers for Parks, the only independent watchdog for

         25  all the City's parks, beaches and playgrounds.
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          2                 For nearly 100 years, New Yorkers for

          3  Parks has worked to ensure greener, safer and

          4  cleaner parks for all New Yorkers.

          5                 New Yorkers for Parks would like to

          6  thank the Wetlands Transfer Task Force for their

          7  excellent work to protect New York City's remaining

          8  wetlands.

          9                 We would also like to thank the Mayor

         10  for the quick transfer of more than 60 acres of

         11  Arlington Marsh to the Parks Department.

         12                 New Yorkers for Parks has long

         13  advocated for the preservation of this important

         14  property, and we hope that the remaining acreage

         15  will also be transferred to ensure its long-term

         16  protection.

         17                 The Task Force recommends that more

         18  than 250 acres of City-owned wetlands eventually be

         19  transferred to the Parks Department's inventory.

         20                 We agree that transferring these

         21  properties is the best way to ensure their long-term

         22  protection. However, the Parks Department must be

         23  assured funding to support and maintain the

         24  additional wetlands.

         25                 The agency's Natural Resources Group,
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          2  NRG, is charged with the restoration, preservation

          3  and management of natural areas across the City.

          4  While private grants are frequently obtained to pay

          5  for restoration work, they rarely cover the

          6  necessary ongoing maintenance. In order for the

          7  Parks Department to properly care for the proposed

          8  additional wetland acreage, we must ensure adequate

          9  funding for this historically under-staffed

         10  division. The Mayor and City Council must

         11  consistently fund the specially trained workers

         12  needed to perform the technical enhancement

         13  restoration and maintenance tests that are needed to

         14  maximize the potential of our wetlands, to manage

         15  stormwater and provide habitat and recreation.

         16                 In addition, the City must continue

         17  to provide funding for Parks Enforcement Patrol

         18  Officers to maintain the security and safety of

         19  these natural areas. Without these essential staff

         20  members, our wetlands will be vulnerable to dumping

         21  and other illegal uses.

         22                 Natural areas are consistently one of

         23  the poorest scoring features on our annual Report

         24  Card on Parks, which evaluates maintenance

         25  conditions of more than 100 neighborhood parks
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          2  Citywide. Excessive litter and broken glass are

          3  frequently found, and only through additional staff

          4  and care can these issues be addressed.

          5                 Today, the Parks Department does not

          6  inspect the conditions of wetlands or any natural

          7  areas that do not contain public access trails. New

          8  Yorkers for Parks recommends that the Parks

          9  Department expand and adapt their nationally

         10  recognized Parks Inspection Program to measure the

         11  maintenance conditions of all natural areas across

         12  the City.

         13                 By setting real performance measures

         14  and goals for the maintenance of natural areas, we

         15  will make certain that all properties that are

         16  within the Parks Department's jurisdiction remain

         17  healthy, thus improving our water quality.

         18  Performance measurement will increase accountability

         19  and ensure that appropriate resources are allocated

         20  for the are of these vital properties.

         21                 We would like to join the rest of the

         22  group in urging the creating of a comprehensive

         23  wetlands policy. Federal and State regulations guide

         24  the protection of wetlands in the City, but many of

         25  New York City's remaining wetlands, such as small
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          2  freshwater properties, are not covered by these

          3  policies. The Mayor's sustainability initiative,

          4  PlaNYC, commits to study existing regulations as a

          5  first step towards crafting a comprehensive wetlands

          6  policy.

          7                 New Yorkers for Parks supports the

          8  City's efforts to examine ways to preserve the

          9  parcels of wetlands that are not currently

         10  protected.

         11                 As described in PlaNYC, the

         12  importance of wetlands in managing stormwater and

         13  providing habitat is unparalleled. We believe that a

         14  City wetlands policy is essential to maximize these

         15  important functions. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you both

         17  for your resounding support of wetlands and for your

         18  support for a comprehensive wetlands policy that

         19  would be spelled out in a law.

         20                 Glenn, I know that you specifically

         21  mentioned Intro. 506 and your statement says "create

         22  a wetlands policy as called for in Intro. 506.." Can

         23  I take it from your statement that you support the

         24  creation of a local law to do this?

         25                 MR. PHILLIPS: Absolutely. I think
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          2  it's essential to ensuring that if these policies

          3  get carried out over generations, this isn't

          4  something that can be solved in two years. So it

          5  needs a law to hold us all accountable to the

          6  future.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Here here.

          8                 Ms. Huber, would this be the position

          9  of New Yorkers for Parks that a law would be

         10  necessary?

         11                 MS. HUBER: Yes, I think we would

         12  agree that in order for the policy to be enacted it

         13  means to have legal teeth. So we would agree with

         14  that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Okay. It's

         16  terrific. We really appreciate your being here and

         17  your strong support of wetlands in New York City,

         18  and New York City Audubon's participation in the

         19  task force was terrific, as well. And we need your

         20  support as well, not only for the 82 transfer

         21  properties, but for the 111 special review

         22  properties and 168 small isolated wetlands, there is

         23  certainly a concern to me in this Committee, and

         24  hopefully I think there are, I think I'm pretty safe

         25  in saying that there are concern for both of the
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          2  organizations, as well; is that fair to say?

          3                 MR. PHILLIPS: Our natural areas

          4  program manager is here. We have a person whose job

          5  it is to keep an eye on these properties, and make

          6  sure that they're being paid attention to.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. Okay.

          8  Well, terrific. We certainly, when you think about

          9  wetlands and you think about parks, we certainly

         10  think about New York City Audubon and New Yorkers

         11  for Parks, you're great advocates and you should be

         12  commended for what you do and we thank you very much

         13  for being here today and appreciate your thoughtful

         14  and good testimony.

         15                 I'm good, Geanie. I'm going to go out

         16  and have something to eat, maybe that will help a

         17  little bit. This whole acid reflux thing, whatever

         18  it is. I don't want to spend too much time talking

         19  about that on the record, but thanks for the candy,

         20  just the same.

         21                 And with no one else wishing to be

         22  heard, I want to thank everyone for coming today and

         23  this hearing is adjourned.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 12:03 p.m.)
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